NATIONS CERD

International Convention on

L. . Distr.
the Elimination GENERAL
of all Forms of CERD &/ SR. 1203
Racial Discrimination 25 April 1997
ENGL| SH

Original: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fiftieth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1203rd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 14 March 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

El eventh and twelfth periodic reports of Irag

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97-15911 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1203
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

El eventh and twelfth periodic reports of Iraq (CERD/ C/ 240/ Add. 3)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the delegation of lraq
took seats at the Committee table.

2. M. al-AZAW (lraq), introducing the eleventh and twelfth periodic
reports of Irag, contained in a single docunent (CERD C/ 240/ Add.3), said that
the delay in subnmitting the report was attributable to the abnormal situation
in northern lraq. Witten | aw had existed in Iraq for over 3,000 years and

m norities had al ways coexi sted peacefully. The foreword to the report said
that the question of denmocracy and human rights had played an inportant role
in the thinking of Irag's | eaders since the 1968 revolution, and that the
guestion of mnorities, which had been neglected prior to the revol ution, was
treated as a priority. Efforts to conbat racial discrimnation were now based
on firmconstitutional and |egal foundations, meking it possible to ensure
respect for the legitimate rights of mnorities within the framework of

nati onal unity. A nunber of acts and decrees had been adopted to that end,

i ncluding Act No. 33 extending autonomy to the region of Iraqgi Kurdistan as
from 1l March 1974, the Act establishing the Executive Council of the

Aut ononobus Regi on of Iraqi Kurdistan, Revolution Comrand Council Decree No. 89
of 24 Novenber 1970, protecting the cultural rights of the Turkomans, and
Decree No. 251 of 1973 recognizing the cultural rights of Syriac-speaking
citizens (report, paras. 3, 9, 6 and 7).

3. The report, which conprised eight chapters and an annex, reviewed al
the neasures adopted in Iraq since 1968, and in particular since the

subm ssion of the tenth report. Iraq had done its utnost to conply with the
Committee's guidelines on the preparation of reports. The first chapter
described the political structure of authority, i.e. the |egislative,
executive and judicial authorities. Chapter Il briefly reviewed the various
| aws to conbat racial discrimnation and safeguard the rights of mnorities.
Chapter 111 described the neasures taken by the Government to resolve the
Kur di sh question and grant autonomy to Kurdistan. |In that regard, he referred
in particular to articles 1, 2, 5 and 6 of the Autonony Act (para. 29), whose
purpose was to guarantee the cultural, social and political rights of the
Kurds. The 1990 nilitary intervention had very seriously underm ned those
rights.

4, Chapter 1V of the report, on the cultural rights of the Turkomans and
Syri ac-speakers, described a nunber of nmeasures that were intended to
guarantee those rights and were still in effect. Chapter V described the

nmeasures taken by Iraq to discharge the international commtments it had nade
when it had acceded to the various instrunments to conbat raci smand prohibit
and punish racial discrimnation at the national |level. There were severa
provi si ons whi ch puni shed any person guilty of acts contrary to the
Conventi on.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1203
page 3

5. Chapter VI enunerated the constitutional and | egal provisions designed
to protect the civil, political, econom c and social rights of all citizens,
including mnorities. Chapter VII related to the |egislative nmeasures taken
to protect individuals fromany act of discrimnation, including, in
particular, the right to institute proceedi ngs before the courts and to obtain
conpensation for discrimnation. Lastly, chapter VIII described neasures
taken to combat racial discrimnation in the fields of education, information
and culture

6. The annex to the report described the abnormal situation prevailing in
northern Irag on account of the foreign military intervention there, which was
both a blatant violation of Iraq's sovereignty and integrity and a threat to
regi onal security. The arnmed interventions by certain neighbouring States and
t he cl ashes between the various Kurdish factions had | ed to serious violations
of the civilian population's rights. The Governnment had done its utnost to
provi de the population with food and medi ci nes (which were seriously | acking
inlraq) and to ensure essential services. It had al so endeavoured to
continue the dialogue with the warring Kurdish parties and had invited themto
find solutions in order to bring the situation in the autononous regi on back
to normal and to enable the population to exercise their legitimate rights
within the framework of national unity. He pointed out that mnorities other
than the Kurds lived in northern Iraq.

7. The paranount issue, which it was inpossible to ignore, was that of
the serious violations still affecting the whole of the Iraqi people on
account of the total econom c enmbargo inposed on Iragq. The enbargo was
absol ute because, even though Security Council resolution 986 (1995) had
excl uded food and nedi ci nes, the exenption had never been observed in
practi ce because of the ban on exports of Iragi oil and the freezing of Iraq
assets abroad. The consequences for the popul ation were dramatic, as the
Secretary-Ceneral of the United Nations had enphasized in 1995 in his report
to the General Assenbly. The Regional Director of WHO for the M ddl e East
had stated at a press conference in April 1996 that the econom c sanctions
had driven Iraqg back 50 years. Reference should also be made to the
recommendati ons of several international conferences held under the aegis of
the United Nations, and decision 1991/108, requesting all States and al

i nternational organizations to take urgent neasures to prevent the death of
t housands of persons, in particular children, which had been unani nmously
adopted by the Sub- Comm ssion on Prevention of Discrimnation and Protection
of Mnorities at its forty-third session

8. Both UNI CEF (E/ I CEF/ 1994/ PL.2) and WHO (\WHO EHA/ 96. 4) had descri bed
t he catastrophic consequences of the health situation for children, nore
t han 600, 000 of whom had died in Iraq between 1990 and August 1995.

9. Basi c infrastructure had been destroyed and there was a shortage of
school supplies. He invited the nenbers of the Cormmittee to assess the actua
situation of lIraq' s popul ation and children on the spot. A slow genoci de,
nore dramatic than a swift genocide, was clearly under way. The agreenment on
the supply of food and basic nmedicines in exchange for oil was not yet being
fully inplenented because of deliberate inpedinments. However, all contracts
for the sale of oil had been honoured. Paynent for the shipnents had been
deposited in the banks specified in nenorandum of understandi ng, but the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1203

page 4

Sanctions Committee had only authorized payment of 9 out of 292 contracts. In
his report to the Security Council (S/1997/206), the Secretary-CGeneral had
said that he did not expect the food supplies to reach Iraq before April. The

I ragi people were despairing of ever receiving them He commended the

Committee's unfailing efforts in support of human rights throughout the world,
and urged it to consider the situation of the Iraqi people in the light of the
i nformati on he had provided. The enmbargo was having dire consequences for the
fundanental rights of the whole of the Iraqgi people, including the mnorities.

10. M. WOLFRUM (Country Rapporteur) commended lraq's efforts to neet its
reporting obligations, in spite of its special and difficult situation

He listed the various sources of information he had used in preparing his
report: a WHO report of March 1996 on the situation in Iraq; the report
prepared by the Secretary-General in conformty with paragraph 11 of

Security Council resolution 986 (1995) (S/1997/206); WHO press rel ease No. 23
of 27 February 1997; the 1996 report of the Special Rapporteur of the

Commi ssion on Human Rights on the situation in Irag (E/ CN 4/1996/61); a report
on the Kurds by Mnority Rights Group International; the report of the Specia
Rapporteur of the Commi ssion on Human Ri ghts on the question of torture
(E/CN. 4/ 1996/ 35/ Add. 1) ; the report of the Wrking Goup on Enforced or

I nvol untary Di sappearances (E/ CN. 4/1995/36); various recomendations by the
CGeneral Assenbly and the Security Council; docunents issued by several NGOCs;
and an interview with the Hanburg Orient Institute.

11. He appreciated that the enbargo on Iraq was having seri ous consequences
for its population, and had taken that fact into account in considering Iraq' s
report. Nevertheless, it should be noted that Iraq's econom ¢ situation had
begun to deteriorate well before the Gulf war, notably on account of the fal
in oil earnings. Mny elenents of the public and private infrastructure had
been destroyed during the Gulf war, to the detrinent, inter alia, of the

popul ation's health. It had been necessary to suspend vaccinati on progranmes
and there had been a considerable increase in the incidence of many di seases.
Rati oni ng had been instituted in 1990 and the population's protein and vitam n
requi renents were not being nmet. Food prices were extrenely high for nost
famlies. Since 1993, the situation had worsened for nobst of the popul ation
especially children, the nunmber of whomadnmitted to hospital had increased

50 tines since 1990. Infant nortality anong children under five had increased
si xf ol d.
12. He suggested to the delegation that in future it should take into

account the Committee's guidelines on the preparation of reports, in order to
make t hem easier to understand.

13. Par agraph 22 of the report (CERD/ C/ 240/ Add. 3) stated that under the
Constitution Iraqg was a soverei gn denocratic republic. However, in his report
on the situation of human rights in Irag (E/ CN. 4/1996/61), the Specia
Rapporteur of the Commi ssion on Human Ri ghts enphasi zed that power was
essentially vested in the President of the Republic, who was also the head of
t he Revol uti on Conmand Council. He would appreciate further information on
the political power structure, and in particular on the provisions of Leading
Party Act No. 142 of 1974.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1203
page 5

14. Irag' s popul ati on was mai nly conposed of Arabs (75 to 80 per cent),
Kurds (15 to 20 per cent), Turkomans, Assyrians and Chal deans. Most of the
popul ation were either Shiite or Sunnite Muslins. There were al so sone
Christians and a small nunmber of Jews. Referring to chapter Il of the report,
describing |l egislative measures to safeguard the rights of mnorities, he

poi nted out that the Convention referred not to mnorities but to |inguistic
or ethnic groups. According to the Special Rapporteur on the situation of
human rights in Iraq, the Assyrians, the Kurds and the Ma' dan were treated
differently fromthe rest of the population. He asked whether Revol ution
Conmand Council| Decree No. 89, of 24 Novenber 1970, stipulating that the

Tur koman | anguage woul d be taught in primary schools, was inplenmented in
practice. In that connection, the Commttee was primarily interested in the
application of legal instruments; it was not sufficient to cite them He
woul d al so appreciate clarification of the information, provided by the
Speci al Rapporteur on the human rights situation in Iraq, that the Governnent
was endeavouring to Arabize sone regions and allegedly obliging their

i nhabitants to | eave their villages.

15. Referring to paragraphs 7, 8 and 32 of the report, he would wel cone
additional information on the inplenmentation of Revolution Conmand

Counci| Decree No. 251 of 1973, which recognized the cultural rights of

Syri ac-speaking citizens (Assyrians, Chal deans and nenbers of the East Syrian
Church). According to the Special Rapporteur on the human rights situation in
Irag, many Assyrian famlies living in Baghdad were discrimnated against. In
addi ti on, according to various sources, the Turkomans, Assyrians and ot her
groups were being conpelled to leave their villages. And the CGovernment was
allegedly still forcing the Kurds and Turkomans living in Msul and Kirkuk to
| eave their places of residence. M. Frank, of the Hamburg Orient Institute,
consi dered that the displacenents could be explained by the discovery of oi

in the region. Regarding the Kurds, he referred to paragraph 27 (c) and (d)
of the report and asked whether the 1974 Acts granting autonony to Iraq

Kurdi stan and establishing the Iraqi Kurdi stan Regi onal Legislative Counci
were inplenmented in practice.

16. As stated in paragraph 2 of the annex to the report, lIraq took the
position that the purpose of the recognition of the rights of mnorities
shoul d be application of the principle of non-discrimnation anmong citizens,
and not the granting of privileges to any particular group. Articles 1

and 2 of the Convention authorized States to adopt, if circunmstances so
required, special neasures to ensure the devel opnent or protection of

certain groups. It was nentioned in paragraph 3 of the annex that Iraqg had
opposed all attenpts to pronote confusion between the right of peoples to

sel f-determ nation and the rights of mnorities, particularly since sone

dom neering States had attenpted to exploit the issue of mnorities in order
to conmpel sone devel oping countries to adopt the political system best suited
to their own political interests, by threatening to divide their peoples and
fragnent their national unity. He enphasized that the Committee did not
recogni ze the right to secession, but would appreciate clarification of the
situation of the Kurds in northern Iraq. It was further stated in paragraph 6
of the annex that the Governnent of Iraq had been forced to withdraw its

adm nistration fromthe regi on because the United States of Anerica

and certain other Western States had interpreted Security Counci

resolution 688 (1991) in a selective and distorted manner in order to engage



CERD/ C/ SR. 1203
page 6

in mlitary intervention on the pretext of protecting the popul ation and
provi di ng hurmani tari an assi stance. He asked what the consequences of the
i ntervention had been for the Kurdi sh people.

17. He wi shed to know what the Iraqi del egation thought about the effects on
the civilian popul ation (Kurdish, Turkoman, etc.) of the intervention by the
Iragi arned forces, as described by the Special Rapporteur of the Conm ssion
on Human Rights. He also asked the delegation to account for reports that the
property rights of the inhabitants of the autononbus regions were being
restricted. He requested oral or witten clarification of the interna

enbargo all egedly inposed on the popul ation of the three governorate in
northern lraq, i.e. essentially the Kurds, the Assyrians, the Turkomans and
other ethnic mnorities. According to a UNICEF report dated April 1995,

50 per cent of the rural population in central and southern lIraq had no access
to drinking water, while the figure for the governorate of Dhi Qar was

90 per cent. He asked whether the disparity was a result of the enmbargo. Was
it true that towns in central Iraq, in particular Tikrit, Samarra and certain
parts of Baghdad, enjoyed preferential treatnent?

18. According to the United Nations Hi gh Conm ssioner for Refugees, there
were still hundreds of thousands of Iraqi refugees abroad, mainly in Iran
Saudi Arabia, Kuwait, Syria, Turkey, Pakistan and Jordan. He asked whet her
that was correct and whether the Governnment had taken neasures to encourage
themto return. Regarding the referendum nentioned in paragraph 17 of the
report (CERD/ C/ 240/ Add. 3), he asked whether the Governnment had made efforts to
ensure the participation of the Kurdish population. He also requested fuller

i nformati on on the population living in the southern marsh regi on who,
according to the Special Rapporteur, had been subjected to acts of

di scrimnation and harassnent in recent years.

19. Regardi ng the distribution of food and medi ci nes, which should have
taken place in conformty with Security Council resolution 986 (1995), it was
apparent fromthe report subnmtted by the Secretary-General to the

Security Council on 10 March 1997 (S/1997/206) that the delay was mainly
attributable to United Nations bureaucratic procedures. In any event, he
expressed doubt as to the fairness and non-discrinm natory character of the
current distribution of food and nedicines by the authorities. The existing
system which required beneficiaries to be in possession of an identity card,
seenmed to be working to the di sadvantage of the population living in the

sout hern marsh region, who generally had no identity cards. According to the
Speci al Rapporteur, the authorities had refused to issue ration cards to
peopl e belonging to certain tribes in the governorate of Basra. Sone groups
and individuals were allegedly favoured, in particular high-ranking mlitary
officers and officials of the party in power.

20. He asked for clarification of the new draft Iraqi Penal Code
(CERD/ C/ 240/ Add. 3, para. 14). The provisions cited in paragraph 36 of the
report were not fully in conformity with those of article 4 of the Convention
The Committee should take note of the special econonic and soci al

ci rcunstances which Iraq faced because of external factors. Nevertheless, the



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1203
page 7

i nformati on on the inplenentation of the Convention provided by the Iraq

del egation was insufficient, and nuch clarification was called for in the
light of the data provided by the Special Rapporteur of the Comm ssion on
Human Ri ghts.

21. The CHAI RMAN recomended that the menmbers of the Conmittee should focus
their questions on the inplenentation of the Convention. He invited the Iraq
del egation to reply orally to the nbst urgent questions, while bearing in mnd
that nmore detailed witten replies and observations could be included in
Irag's thirteenth and fourteenth periodic reports.

22. M. ABOUL- NASR observed that none of the highly critical reports on the
situation in Iraq published by WHO, UNI CEF and vari ous NGOs took account of
the difficulties the country was faci ng because of the unjust sanctions which
had been inmposed on the Iraqi people. Regarding the report recently submtted
by the Secretary-General of the United Nations to the Security Counci

(S/ 1997/ 206), he asked the Iraqi del egation why the menmorandum of
under st andi ng concl uded subsequent to the adoption of Security Counci
resolution 986 (1995) had still not been inplenented. |In his view, what was
nost di sturbing was that the Secretary-General had said neither when, nor to
what extent, the menorandum woul d be inplenented, even though Iragi civilians,
and in particular children, were suffering and dying every day. He agreed
with the representative of Irag that slow genoci de was under way.

23. He accordingly proposed that, in its concluding observations, the
Committee should say that it was committed to respect for Iraq' s sovereignty,
disturbed at Iraq's inability to inplenent the Convention in those parts of
its territory beyond its sovereignty and concerned at the deterioration in the
humani tarian situation. Lastly, the Commttee should call for the i mediate

i npl enentation of the provisions of the nenorandum of understandi ng.

24. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ sai d that because of political and mlitary
factors attributable to the Gulf war, the popul ation of Kurdi stan, and al so
the Iraqgi popul ation as a whole, were being deprived of their essential rights
under the Iraqi Constitution and other |egislative instruments. He asked
whet her the ethnic groups conprising the Turkomans and Syri ac-speaki ng
citizens (Assyrians, Chal deans and nenbers of the East Syrian Church) enjoyed
other rights than those nentioned in paragraphs 6 and 7 of the report and
whet her any ot her nmeasures had been adopted by the Government to ensure
respect for, and the advancenent of, their |anguage and culture. He also
asked whet her those groups could establish cultural organi zations, whether
pursuant to article 2 of the Convention, there was any overall policy to
conbat discrimnation and if so, what its fundanmental features were.

25. He requested clarification of the regi ne of autonony enjoyed by the
Kurdi stan region (CERD/ C/ 240/ Add. 3, para. 29). Wat were the main features of
its autonony? What did it consist of? Wat were the main organs and
functions of the autononous regional governnent? Wre funds provided solely
fromthe general State budget? Was the President of the Executive Counci
responsi ble for other adnministrative departnments?



CERD/ C/ SR. 1203
page 8

26. He asked whether the international human rights instruments,

and in particular the Convention, to which Iraq had acceded
(CERD/ C/ 240/ Add. 3, para. 33) forned an integral part of domestic

| egi sl ati on and whether it was possible directly to invoke their provisions
before the courts. Regarding the inplenmentation of article 4 of the
Convention (CERD/ C/ 240/ Add. 3, para. 36), he inquired whether racist politica
parties were also prohibited and whether there had been any instances in which
the provisions of the article had been inplemented. To conclude, he wel coned
the fact that crimnal proceedings instituted for racial discrimnation or
raci st propaganda coul d not be halted, suspended or dropped except in the

ci rcunst ances specified by | aw (CERD/ C/ 240/ Add. 3, paras. 65 and 66 (b)).

27. M. YUTZIS comrended the quality of both the witten and oral reports
presented by the Iraqgi delegation and the explanations provided, which had
given hima better understanding of the trying social and humanitarian
situation facing the country. He was, however, confused about the meaning, in
t he Spani sh version, of part of paragraph 7 of the report concerning the
teaching of Syriac. He asked whether the right to teach Syriac actually

exi sted and was exercised in practice. Nor was it clear from paragraph 30
whet her Turkoman witers already effectively enjoyed the right to establish
their own association. And paragraph 32 suggested that the right of
Syriac-speaking citizens to formcultural and artistic clubs had been granted,
rat her than recogni zed, which was what should have been done.

28. According to paragraph 50 of the report, article 25 of the Constitution
restricted freedomof religion, belief and worship in the interests of
morality and public order. VWhile recognizing that that restriction was no
doubt legitimte, he asked whether any code explicitly specified which acts
were contrary to the constitutional provisions relating to norality and public
order.

29. M. van BOVEN said that the sanctions inposed on Iraq under Chapter VII
of the Charter represented a heavy and unjust penalty on the Iraqgi popul ation
and should be reviewed so as to limt their effects on the nost vul nerable
groups, particularly women and children. As the sanctions were causing
hundreds of thousands of victinms among Iraqi children, it would be useful for
the Conmttee to determ ne whether children belonging to specific ethnic
groups were particularly effected by the shortage of food and medi ci nes.

30. Since there was often a close link between racial discrimnation and the
overall econonmic situation, it would also be useful for the Comrittee to
obtain further information on the status of the autononous region of Iraq
Kurdi stan, and in particular on the provisions relating to the exploitation of
natural resources

31. Referring to the principle of State responsibility, he asked which

nei ghbouring States were responsible for the violations of the rights of the
Kurdi sh people, referred to in paragraph 8 of the annex describing the
situation in northern Iraq. He also asked whether Irag was considering
recourse to the procedure provided for under articles 11 to 14 of the
Convention in respect of the parties concerned.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1203
page 9

32. Lastly, he strongly urged Iraq to ratify the anendnent to article 8 (c)
of the Convention concerning the funding of the Conmmittee's activities.

33. M. CHI GOVERA said, with reference to paragraph 2 of the report, that he
woul d appreciate further information on the level at which the Kurdish people
and other mnorities were represented in Iraq's central CGovernment. He noted
that, according to paragraph 33 of the report, the provisions of the
Convention had become an integral part of donmestic |egislation, and asked the
del egation to explain how it was possible in practice to invoke the Convention
in order to conbat racial discrimnation. He asked whether its provisions had
been incorporated into national |egislation or whether specific |egislation
had been enacted to inplenent them

34. There were still doubts as to how article 4 was inplenmented in Iraqg and,
in view of the distinction nmade in paragraph 47 of the report between
religious comunities and ethnic mnorities, he asked for details of the

et hnic conposition of the Iraqgi population. The Comrittee would appreciate
further information on the religi ous communities.

35. M. de GOUTTES said that, like M. Wl frum he w shed to enphasi ze that
Iraq's popul ation were the hel pless victinms of an international enbargo that
had resulted in a catastrophic situation which could only be sol ved by
political means. He endorsed M. Aboul -Nasr's proposal that the i medi ate

i mpl enentation of the “oil for food” agreenent should be reconmended, on the
understanding that all Iraqgis should benefit fromit equally and w thout any
ki nd of privilege.

36. He noted from paragraph 27 of Iraq's report that article 17 of the
Constitution, establishing the general principle of non-discrimnation, was
not substantiated by the provisions of the Penal Code. Current |egislation
and articles 200 et seq. in particular, did not seemto satisfy all the
requi rements of article 4 of the Convention. He accordingly urged lraq to
remedy the situation

37. Regarding article 6 of the Convention, he hoped that the information
provi ded in paragraphs 65 et seq. of the report would be supplenented in the
next report by actual exanples of conplaints concerning acts of racia
discrimnation. In view of the nulti-ethnic conposition of the population, it
woul d be surprising if there had been no such cases. He asked whether the
heavi er penalties referred to in paragraph 14 of the report also applied to
raci st of fences.

38. M. SHAHI associated hinself with M. de CGouttes' request for lraq to
fully and effectively incorporate article 4 into its legislation. He endorsed
the concern expressed by M. Aboul - Nasr about the prohibition of nmedical and
humani tarian supplies to Iraq despite the nenorandum of understandi ng signed
with the United Nations; there was absolutely no reason to maintain the
sanctions since Iragq had accepted Security Council resolutions 706 and 712.

39. He hoped that the Committee would include in its concludi ng observations
concerning the structural difficulties hindering the inplenmentation of the
Convention, a request for all parties concerned to authorize the delivery to
Irag of essential humanitarian supplies in order to relieve the suffering of
the Iraqgi people.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1203
page 10

40. M. AHMADU said that he was gratified by the quality of the informtion
which the Iraqi delegation had provided to the Comm ttee concerning the
obstacl es inpeding the inplenentation of all the provisions of the Convention,
which the State party was understandably unable to inplenent in | arge areas of
its territory not under its control. He associated hinmself with the hopes
expressed by the other menmbers of the Conmittee for rapid renmoval of the
obstacles to the speedy delivery of humanitarian supplies to Irag, whose

popul ati on urgently needed them

41. He inquired whether the term*“referendunt used in the report referred to
elections. If it did not, that would nean that the Government of Iraq was
failing to inplenent article 5 (c) of the Convention

42. The provisions of lraqgi |egislation on the acquisition of Iraq
citizenship were very favourable. He asked in what circunstances the Mnistry
of the Interior could withdraw Iraqi citizenship.

43. M. LECHUGA HEVI A thanked the Iraqi delegation for the information it
had provided to the Committee and, |ike the other nenbers of the Commttee,
stressed the inhuman situation unjustly inposed on the Iragi popul ation
External circunstances were |argely responsible for preventing Iraq from

i mpl enmenting all the provisions of the Convention. He supported the proposa
to call on the parties concerned to ensure the delivery to Iraq of the nedica
and food supplies so urgently needed by its popul ation

44. The CHAI RMAN said that the Committee woul d continue consideration of the
el eventh and twelfth periodic reports of Iraq at its next meeting.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




